



CONSTITUTION 2022

NIAGARA DISTRICT BASEBALL ASSOCIATION CONSTITUTION

Updated November 2021 at the AGM

1.01 ARTICLE 1 – NAME:

The name of the organization should be the NIAGARA DISTRICT BASEBALL ASSOCIATION, herein referred to as NDBA.

1.02 ARTICLE 2 – OBJECTIVES:

The objects of the NDBA shall be:

- a) To foster, perpetuate and improve the game of baseball among the youth within the established boundaries of the NDBA as outlined.
- b) To protect and promote the mutual interests of the member associations.
- c) To institute and regulate completion for NDBA League and Tournament Play and determine representation to the Provincial Championships.
- d) To effectively communicate to the Local Associations changes in any Rules, By-Law or Constitutional Amendments, and any requires information to participate in League Play and Tournaments at all levels.

1.03 ARTICLE 3 – MEMBERSHIP:

- a) Membership into the NDBA will be from Municipalities and Baseball Teams within the boundaries as set forth by the NDBA, who are in good standing and who agree to abide by and comply with the Constitution, By-Laws, and Rules of the Affiliate Association (NDBA), and when necessary the Constitution of the Ontario Baseball Association. Membership may be revoked by the Board of Directors at any time for failing to meet the foregoing conditions.
- b) The NDBA Board of Directors shall have the power to accept individual teams where they are unable to secure grouping in any Affiliate or Local Association.

- c) New Local Associations seeking membership into the NDBA must have its own Ball Park Facility distinct and separate from current parks in the District, and not play any of its games out of an existing member's facility, unless permission is given to do so by the existing member. Have a complete and functional Constitution, along with a full Board of Directors and financial statements.

1.04 ARTICLE 4 – BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

- a) The elected Members of the Board of Directors shall consist of the following:
 - i) President
 - ii) 1st Vice President
 - iii) 2nd Vice President
 - iv) Secretary
 - v) Treasurer
 - vi) Registrar
 - vii) Directors(3)
 - viii) Advisory Board(3)
 - ix) Past President and Life Members
- b) The Appointed Members of the Board of Directors shall consist of the following:
 - i) The “NEW BOARD OF DIRECTORS” shall assume control immediately upon their election and serve until the next Annual Social Banquet and elections.
- c) The President and Treasurer are the signing officers for cheques; a third member of the Executive is appointed by the President as an alternate.
- d) The Board of Directors shall have the power to fill vacancies which may occur in its numbers at the next monthly meeting on the schedule as per the voting outlined in Article 1.06 a, b and c and to deal with any issues which are not otherwise provided for or covered by the NDBA Constitution and By-Laws.
- e) The Board of Directors shall have the power to vote at all meetings and control the affairs of the NDBA and make any further appointments it deems necessary.
- f) A nominating committee appointed by the Board of Directors shall determine a list of individuals indicating a willingness to stand for office. These names will be presented for nomination at the Election of Officers at the AGM, in addition nominations will be allowed from the floor. Nominees must be present or provide written confirmation of their intention to stand for any position. Where a vote is required, ballots will be issued in accordance with the entitlement to vote as provided in the NDBA Constitution.
- g) HONORARY MEMBER: The position of Honorary Member of the NDBA may be presented by the Board of Directors to any member who has provided outstanding continuous and meritorious faithful service to the Board of Directors of the NDBA for over a period of 15 years or more in the promotion and development of baseball. Any selection shall require the approval of at least

2/3 of the eligible votes of the Board of Directors. Honorary Members shall have voting privileges at all Board of Directors, General and Social Meetings.

- h) At all Board of Director Meetings a quorum of 50% + 1 of elected board of directors must be present to pass any order of business.
- i) Any Member of the Board of Directors who fails to attend three (3) consecutive meetings, without reason that in the opinion of the Board of Directors are unsatisfactory shall have automatically tendered his/her resignation. After two (2) consecutive misses this detail shall be brought to his/her attention by a letter from the Secretary. Should the third consecutive miss occur, the NDBA Board of Directors will appoint a replacement.
- j) The Ontario Baseball Association (OBA) shall be an advisory body to the NDBA Board of Directors and the presence and advice of the OBA shall always be welcome at the meetings of this association.

1.05 ARTICLE 5 - DUTIES OF OFFICERS:

- a) The President: shall preside at all meetings of the NDBA with the usual privileges of the office. He may call a special meeting of the NDBA or Board of Directors by giving forty-eight (48) hours' notice. The President shall generally superintend the business of the NDBA.
- b) The 1st Vice President: shall perform the duties of the President in the Presidents' absence, and also shall be the Over-All Series Convener in all series run by the NDBA and shall chair the Advisory Board on all matters pertaining to those divisions.
- c) The 2nd Vice President: shall perform the duties of the 1st Vice President in their absence, shall oversee all district teams, shall liaise with COBA and shall chair the Advisory Board for all matters pertaining to those divisions.
- d) The Secretary: shall keep an accurate record of the proceedings of the NDBA, and Board of Directors, and notify each Local Association of the time and place of each meeting, and also conduct all correspondence of the NDBA.
- e) The Registrar: shall issue and keep accurate records of all players' certificates and rosters.
- f) The Treasurer: shall keep an accurate record of all monies received and disbursed by the NDBA. All disbursements shall be made by cheque and shall require the signature of the Treasurer and President or the 1st Vice President in his absence.
- g) The Advisory Board: shall be responsible for all release and disciplinary hearings and their rulings.
- h) The Directors: shall be responsible for:

- iv) Election of Board of Directors
- v) Social Evening

- g) A meeting of the Board of Directors should be held once (1) a month after the Annual Social Banquet to the end of playoff time.
- h) Anyone being nominated for the office of President must have served two (2) full terms in the last two (2) years on the NDBA Board of Directors. Nominees for Vice President must have served one (1) full term on the previous NDBA Board of Directors.
- i) The President shall call a meeting at the request of any three (3) members of the Board of Directors.
- j) At all General Business Meetings there must be 50% plus 1 voting Members of the membership in attendance to pass any order of business.

1.07 ARTICLE 7 – ASSOCIATIONS:

- a)
 - 1) Beamsville
 - 2) Dunnville (not active)
 - 3) Fort Erie (not active)
 - 4) West Niagara
 - 5) Niagara Falls
 - 6) Pelham
 - 7) Port Colborne (not active)
 - 8) St. Catharines
 - 9) Thorold
 - 10) Welland
 - 11) Grimsby Amateur Baseball

- b) All Associations MUST have Liability Insurance as provided by the OBA. This insurance must be purchased every year before the season begins.

- c) The Annual Fee for each club shall be determined by the Board of Directors and the By-Laws as amended from time to time. All entry fees MUST be paid prior to certificates being issued and signed by the Registrar. Notice of an annual fee shall be provided to each Affiliate by May 1st of each year.

- d) No Affiliate in arrears in whole or in part of fees shall be entitled to vote upon any question at any NDBA Meeting, and an Affiliate so in arrears, shall forfeit all rights and privileges of protesting any games played while so in arrears and of requesting a special meeting of the NDBA.
- e) Any Affiliate with the NDBA must post a bond for each team which must be kept at a par to maintain good standings. Any infraction on this bond suspends the Affiliate until a bond is posted or is replenished. These funds deposited with the NDBA to cover such bonds shall be kept separate from the General Account. Any Affiliate that has new teams coming into the NDBA will have to the maximum bond fee for that year. Affiliates that have been in will catch up on Bonds on a set annual basis.
- f) Should a municipality withdraw from the NDBA, the Bond amount shall be maintained for a period of 5 inactive years, after which the bond shall be forfeited. Any subsequent application for membership in the NDBA will require Bond Money to be re-instated by that association.
- g) Any one registered within the boundaries of the Niagara District Baseball Association must do so through one of the Local Associations listed as members of the Niagara District Baseball Association in the current constitution and all payments must be made through the respective Local Association.

1.08 ARTICLE 8 – SUSPENSION OF MEMBERSHIP:

- a) The Membership of any team may be forfeited by:
 - i) Voluntary Withdrawal
 - ii) Disbandment
 - iii) Offering, agreeing, conspiring or attempting to lose a game, or being interested in any pool or wager against his/her own team
 - iv) Refusing to play or continue a game

1.09 ARTICLE 9 – AMENDMENTS:

- a) Amendments shall be made to the Constitution herein contained only at the Annual Social Banquet and Elections and then only by 50% plus 1 of the votes cast. All notices of proposed Amendments to the Constitution must be in the hands of the Secretary four (4) weeks prior to the fall General Business Meetings.

- b) Amendments can only be proposed by the NDBA Board of Directors or by an Affiliate Association Member in Good Standing.

1.10 ARTICLE 10 – GENERAL:

- a) The NDBA Constitution and By-Laws are intended as a general guide and cannot specifically cover each and every situation that may arise, therefore the Board of Directors will have the authority to interpret and decide to the best of their judgment with regard to all such circumstances or any specific case.

NIAGARA DISTRICT BASEBALL ASSOCIATION BY-LAWS

2.01 ARTICLE 1 – BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

- a) The First Vice coordinates the maintenance of the NBDA website, either through their own efforts, or through a 3rd party under their direction. Updates from Local Associations are to be directed through the Secretary.

2.02 ARTILCE 2 – AGE AND ELIGIBILITY:

- a) AGE: means that if a player in any age of the ages listed below before January 1st of the playing year, CANNOT play in that series. If a players birthdate falls on January 1st or after, in the playing

year, the player CAN play in that series. No player may participate with more than one (1) club in any one series.

i)	8U	2014 - 2017
ii)	9U	2013
iii)	10U	2012
iv)	11U	2011
v)	12U	2010
vi)	13U	2009
vii)	14U	2008
viii)	15U	2007
ix)	16U	2006
x)	18U	2005
xi)	22U	2000

b) ELIGIBILITY:

- i) No player may play in any group sponsored by the Affiliate until proof of age has been approved by the Registrar.
- ii) Playing certificates (Rosters) along with proof of age, must be in the hands of the Registrar no later than May 1st. Teams violating this rule shall automatically forfeit ALL games until the certificates (Rosters) have been verified and approved by the Registrar, or the NDBA Officer authorized to act in the Registrar's behalf. April 1 shall be the deadline for teams entering to play in the NDBA leagues. Entry fees must also be paid no later than the conveners meetings in April.
- iii) Players shall be permitted to sign Certificates up until the date set by the OBA (which is June 30th, but each shall then be responsible for having the NDBA Registrar sign them and to forward them themselves to the OBA Secretary.

- iv) No player may compete in an NDBA Game without an approved players' certificate after July 8th. Penalty: Games will be forfeited to the opposing team.
 - v) Any player under suspension in ANY Ball League for any foul or reprehensible conduct shall NOT be admitted as a member of any team, unless permission is obtained from the Board of Directors of the NDBA.
 - vi) Each Team shall have the privilege of signing 25 Players, but shall not sign so many that another Team may be deprived of playing talent. This is to be determined by the Board of Directors in the case of a dispute.
- c) UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT:
- i) In all NDBA Series, all team personnel including managers and coaches must be in complete and corresponding baseball uniforms.
 - ii) All Players must wear approved protective helmets sanctioned by the NDBA. These helmets MUST be worn when batting, running the bases and when in the on-deck circle.
 - iii) All Rookie ball, Minor Mosquito, Mosquito, Minor Peewee and Peewee shall be restrained from wearing shoes with metal cleats.
 - iv) Only OBA Approved Baseballs are to be used for all games in the NDBA.
 - v) All Catchers are required to wear a mask with a throat protector, approved helmet, chest protector, shin guards, cup and cup supporter.
 - vi) Any Team Member serving as a catcher warming up a pitcher shall wear a mask with a throat protector.
 - vii) The legal bat diameter shall be 2 $\frac{3}{4}$ ".
 - viii) Subject to the following: in addition to wooden bats, metal bats shall be allowed in NDBA play as follows:
 1. From Minor Mosquito to Peewee, metal bats with a length to weight difference of drop 10 (-10) or less are permitted.
 2. From Minor Bantam through Senior ONLY wood bats including composite wood bats shall be permitted.

- ix) Pitchers will be allowed to wear Medic-Alert Bracelets on the wrist of their pitching arm, if such bracelet are locked and cannot be transferred to their non-pitching arm.
 - x) There is no visible jewelry allowed: Penalty- Jewelry to be removed.
 - xi) Any equipment in the opinion of the Umpire(s), is considered broken or defective, the equipment in question shall be removed immediately.
- d) CONDUCT AND EJECTIONS:
- i) Any Player, Team Manager or Coach, or any other personnel guilty of misconduct may be suspended by the Board of Directors.
 - ii) Any Player, Team Manager, Coach or Umpire attending any NDBA or OBA game in any series shall conduct himself/herself in a sportsmanlike manner at all times, failing which any individual(s) may be subject to a disciplinary hearing for any conduct the series convener deems serious.
 - iii) If any Player(s), Team Manager, Coach or Team Official of a playing team is ejected from a ball game, for any reason of misconduct, he/she is automatically suspended for the following regular, tournament or playoff game and cannot participate for any other team while under suspension.
 - iv) If for any reason of misconduct, a Player, Manager, Coach or any Official is ejected from a ball game twice (2) in the season, he/she is automatically suspended for a period of two (2) games, following his/her teams next regular scheduled game, tournament or playoff games and is not to attend any games played by his/her team during such suspension and cannot participate for any other team during such suspension.
 - v) If a Player, Manager, Coach or Official of a Playing Team is ejected more than twice (2) in the same baseball season, he will be automatically suspended indefinitely subject to a hearing of the Advisory Board and could be liable to a suspension for up to a year.
 - vi) The Advisory Board shall be responsible for hearing any Discipline Matters. The President shall preside over any hearing in the event a member of the Advisory Board is unable to attend a hearing or declares a conflict of interest, the member shall notify the President and the President may request any other member of the Board of Directors to attend such hearing.

- vii) Any Player, Manager, Coach or Team Official ejected anytime for an offence that the Series Convener deems serious enough by virtue of an Umpires Report, may be subject to further suspension. The Convener shall notify the President of the offence and the President may immediately impose an indefinite suspension and shall refer the matter to the Advisory Board for a hearing to be held within seven (7) days.
 - viii) Any suspended person may only appeal any disciplinary decision of the Advisory Board by giving written notice to the Secretary of the NDBA within seven (7) days notification of the decision of the Advisory Board. The Executive shall hear the appeal at a special meeting called by the President within seven (7) days of receipt of the notice of appeal. Any notice of appeal must be accompanied by a deposit fee of \$50.00 cash, cheque or money order. The deposit will be refunded only if the Player, Coach, Manager or Team Official is re-instated immediately.
 - ix) For Niagara District Playoffs, a Player, Manager, Coach or Team Official ejected a third (3) time in the Play-offs, will be suspended indefinitely pending a hearing of the Advisory Board. Any hearing will be held within seven (7) days.
 - x) If any Player, Manager, Team Official is under suspension at the time of the OBA Playoffs, the suspension will continue into the playoffs unless otherwise approved by the NDBA Board of Directors.
- e) PLAYERS TO QUALIFY UNDER THE RESIDENCY RULE:
- i) All players must qualify under the OBA Residency Rule as outlined in the OBA Constitution under P1.3, P1.4, P1.5, P1.6 and not compete as a semi-professional or professional baseball player. Athletes classified as professional in other branches of sports may compete with any NDBA Team.
 - ii) The NDBA promotes Players playing for teams in their local association when at all possible. When a player has been allowed to play for a team because a team does not exist in the players local association under the residency rules (home association), if the players home association enters a team in a subsequent year, the player will be required to return to his/her home association.
- f) RELEASES:
- i) All releases fall under the guidelines of the OBA Constitution, unless otherwise noted in the NDBA Constitution.
 - ii) All Player(s) must be registered with their Local Association to be eligible to apply for a release(s).

- iii) All player(s) requesting a release(s) , must first make application in writing to their Home Association, before the Chair of the Advisory Board will entertain any application for a release.
- iv) Where there are more than 1 (one) Association that exists in the same city or town, and there are requests for releases, these requests will be dealt with by the Association to which the player(s) are registered.
- v) When a Local Association grants a release(s), these release(s) allows the released player(s) to play for any team and any Association within the boundaries of the NDBA.
- vi) When a Local Association denies player(s) a release request, these player(s) have the right to appeal their Local Association decision to the NDBA.
- vii) The NDBA will set up a hearing to take place once they have been provided proof of the denied release, then NDBA will then make a decision based on all the information provided whether to grant or deny the release.
- viii) If denied both parties may appeal the NDBA'S decision to the technical Committee of the OBA.
- ix) Where player(s) are requesting a release(s) to play for teams outside the boundaries of the NDBA, they shall appear in person, at a date and time and place to be determined by the Advisory Board Chair. Should the request by the NDBA be denied, they have the right to appeal this decision to the Technical Committee of the OBA.
- x) Where a request for a release is received pursuant to paragraphs v), and or vi), all requests for release(s) heard will be resolved on an individual and case-by- case basis.
- xi) Where a District Team exists and are sanctioned by Article 2.07, (Regional Niagara Team Operations), any player(s) who attends the required number of tryouts and is offered a spot on the roster of such team, is deemed to be released from his/her Local Association to participate with said team, as applicable, for the playing year.
- xii) Where an Association does not have fall tryouts and is unclear if they will be fielding a team(s) for the upcoming season, any player(s) can apply for a request to tryout from their Local Association. Should the player(s) make the team and is offered a spot on the roster, then the request to tryout will be their granted release, if they are unsuccessful, then they must return to their Local Association.

2.03 ARTICLE 3 – GAMES:

- a) Game times and innings will be as follows:
 - i) All scheduled evening games in parks without lights, these games shall be scheduled for 6pm, until the end of July, where the start time will be 5:30pm.
 - ii) All games in the NDBA for all series shall be 7 innings.
 - iii) All games will have a 30 minutes grace period.
 - iv) All games will have a mercy rule as outlined in the OBA Constitution.
 - v) All regular season games in all series, a 2 hour curfew will apply.
 - vi) If a tie score exists after 7 complete innings have been played and curfew has not been reached, extra innings shall be permitted, and continue to either the score has been broken, or curfew has been reached and if games remain tied it will be a tied game and the standings shall reflect this.
 - vii) In all series during NDBA Playoffs the OBA Constitution will apply, as there will be no time limit on these games.
 - viii) Ground rules are the responsibility of the Home Team and will not contravene the Official Rules of Baseball.
 - ix) Only Players, Coaches, Managers, Trainers and Team Officials shall be allowed on the players bench or dug outs.

- b) Where a team desires postponement of a regular scheduled game, mutual agreement with the other Team involved, must be made and have Presidential or Convener approval forty-eight (48) hours before the time of the scheduled game to be played. The penalty shall be loss of game and the responsibility to reimburse all the other teams expenses involved. These expenses are to be submitted to the Board of Directors for approval, and the amount as approved by the Board of Directors shall be paid forthwith, failing which, the expenses may be paid out of Bond Monies. Failure to replenish the Bond Money shall result in the automatic suspension of the Affiliate until the Bond is replenished.

- c) All Teams playing Rep Ball in the District League, from Rookieball to Senior must play or complete 85% of their scheduled games to be eligible to participate in Niagara District Playoffs and OBA Play downs on Labour Day.
- d) From Minor Peewee through Junior exclusive, in the event all players have been in the game and an injury occurs, the opposing manager or coach shall select any player as his/her replacement. NOTE: This rule does not apply to an ejection from the game.
- e) For the purpose of Niagara District regular season league games only (and in particular exclusive of Niagara District Playoff games, OBA Preliminary round robin and playoff games, OBA sanctioned tournament games), a player in any series Bantam and under playing on a team designated as a Municipality C team by the Niagara District which consists of both minor and major players, shall be allowed to with the Major or Minor Team as determined by his/her age in the same series in his/her own association without affecting his/her status in the series and the team with which he/she signed. Any player who so advances must play with his/her original club when the club he/she is called to play for and the club he/she signed with will have games on the same date. Any club contravening these provisions may be subject to sanctions.
- f) Any Team eligible for Niagara District Play-off must participate in ALL its playoffs. If a team fails to fulfill its commitment, its performance bond may be forfeited.
- g) In all series Mosquito and above with two (2) or more teams with the same classifications for OBA purposes, the league games between the clubs shall be compiled and the teams will play a 2/3 series to represent the Niagara District in OBA Play downs.
- h) Any Team without enough players (9) shall be deemed to have forfeited the game.

2.04 ARTICLE – PROTEST

- a) The Advisory Board shall preside at all Protests.
- b) All protests shall be filed in accordance with the following regulations:
 - i) All protests are to be filed with the Umpire at the time of the infraction and it is the Umpires duty to notify the opposing team (coach or manager). The Umpire will note the protest on the game card or scorebook.
 - ii) To proceed with a protest, the protesting team shall submit a written report in duplicate with the Series Convener or Secretary within forty-eight (48) hours of the scheduled start time of the game in question.

- iii) The protest must be accompanied by a deposit fee of \$50.00 in cash, cheque or money order. The deposit will be refunded if the protest is upheld. If the protest is denied, the deposit shall be forfeited unless otherwise determined by the Advisory Board.
- iv) The Team protested against shall be notified immediately by the Secretary or Series Convener that a formal protest has been lodged and shall forward a copy of the notice of protest.
- v) The Team protested against shall file its response if any, with the Secretary or Series Convener within forty-eight (48) hours of receipt of notification of the formal protest.
- vi) The Advisory Board shall meet within ten (10) days of receipt of the formal protest to a decision with respect to the protest. Where the Advisory Board upholds the protest, it shall prescribe all conditions governing the disposition of the game protested. The decision of the Advisory Board shall be final.

2.05 ARTICLE 5 – PLAYING RULES:

- a) The playing rules as laid down by the OBA for baseball shall govern all games in this association EXCEPT as noted in the By-Laws of the NDBA Constitution.
- b) NDBA schedules must be drawn up so the teams representing the different classifications will be declared in time to compete in the OBA Play downs on Labour Day.
- c) The President will appoint Conveners to act wherever necessary.
- d) The NDBA shall affiliate directly with the Ontario Baseball Association.
- e) No Team shall enter Niagara District Playoffs unless they are in good standing with the League.

2.06 ARTICLE 6 – BUDGETS:

- a) Subsequent to the elections for the upcoming year, the President nominates a budget committee of three (3) people, one of which must be the Treasurer. This committee will prepare a budget for no later than March for review and approval at the next Executive Meeting.
- b) Once the budget has been approved, the fee structure in Appendix 2 is updated for immediate communication to the local association.

2.07 ARTICLE 7 – DISTRICT TEAM OPERATIONS:

PLAYERS:

- a) All Player(s) must be registered on the NDBA website before taking the field to try-out for any District team as per NDBA and OBA Rules.
- b) Any Player(s) who is signed to any District team Roster, regardless of the Host Centre may simultaneously play in another program but NOT in Ontario.
- c) Player(s) are encouraged to try-out for their appropriate age groups only.

COACHES:

- a) The NDBA will send out notices to all associations in the region beginning in July of the current baseball season, which applications are now being accepted for the position of Head Coach for all District teams for the following baseball season. These applications will be accepted until August 30th.
- b) All applications received by August 30th will be reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors of the NDBA.
- c) The NDBA's goal is to have Regional Representation of Head Coaches and Assistant Coaches for all District teams, BUT in the end must select only the most qualified applicants regardless of their City of residence or where the Host Centre Teams are based.
- d) The 'NEW' or returning Coaches must select the following years team in the week immediately following the conclusion of the current year's OBA Labour Day Play downs. Coaches will be encouraged to keep a spot or two open for unforeseeable situations that may arise. This will also encourage attendance and competition for the winter workouts.
- e) All District Coaches are encouraged to run indoor work outs at an approved NDBA facility, beginning in October of their coaching year, through to such time as Mother Nature allows teams to move outdoors. No work-outs will be scheduled for the March Break week.
- f) All Head Coaches and Assistant Coaches must apply for District teams on a year to year basis, unless otherwise approved by the NDBA Board of Directors.

HOST CENTRES:

- a) Each District team will be based in an Affiliate center on a year to year basis. Coaches of these Teams are encouraged to play a few home games in other centers, but that is not mandatory.

- b) The Host Centre will be responsible for the entire cost associated with their respective District team(s). The NDBA will NOT subsidize any team(s) beyond what is reasonable and expected.
- c) All District teams must wear the Host Centre 'Club Uniform', bearing their appropriate and traditional name and colors. No exceptions.
- d) Team(s) will adhere to the policies of the Local Association that governs the Host Centre. Any issues that should arise from this and cannot be settled will be brought to the NDBA for arbitration, and their decision shall be Final.
- e) Coaches of Host Centers are to notify all eligible player(s) once try out dates have been established.
- f) If and when numbers warrant a 2nd or 3rd District team in any division and no Host has approved, notices will be sent out immediately to all associations in the Region, that there is need for and association to Host these team(s).

2.08 ARTICLE 8 – UMPIRE ASSOCIATION:

a) PURPOSE:

- i. It is the intent of this By-Law to establish the framework for the affiliation of the NBUA with the NBDA.

b) DEFINITIONS:

- i. NDBA shall mean Niagara District Baseball Association.
- ii. NBUA shall mean Niagara Baseball Umpires Association.
- iii. ASSIGNOR shall refer to the person or persons used by the NBUA for the purpose of coordinating the umpires schedule for game attendance and other duties herein designated.
- iv. O.B.A and/or Baseball Ontario shall refer to the Ontario Baseball Association.
- v. AFFILIATE ASSOCIATION shall refer to a member Association of the Niagara District Baseball Association.
- vi. ALL-STAR LEAGUE shall refer to the teams playing in a division of the Niagara District Baseball Association.

- vii. GAME shall refer to a baseball game.
- viii. CONVENER shall refer to the person assigned by the NDBA to coordinate the play of baseball in a division of the All Star League.
- ix. DIVISION shall mean the name of the age group for the players in the assigned game.

c) RECOGNITION

- i. The NDBA recognizes the development of the NBUA and recommend to its affiliated associations that the NBUA be utilized by all affiliates within the NDBA for League, Play-off and Tournament Games for All-Star Divisions including Bantam and above.

d) RULES AND REGULATIONS

- i. The NBUA shall enforce the Rules and Regulations of the NDBA, the Official Rules of Baseball and the Playing Rules and Regulations of the OBA.

e) UMPIRE ASSIGNMENTS

- i. The Assignor shall assign Umpires for the following games if requested by the affiliate associations by team registration completion date:
 - 1. NDBA Affiliate All-Star team regular season schedule.
 - 2. NDBA Play-off games and/or Tournaments.
 - 3. OBA Sanctioned Tournaments.
- ii. The Assignor must be notified no later than one (1) hour before scheduled game time for cancellation as a result of inclement weather or unsafe playing conditions. Failure to notify the Assignor of cancellations in the required period of time, shall result in the Host Association being assessed a \$10.00 travel expense fee per Umpire in attendance, as of the scheduled start time. If the Umpires have not taken control of the game, and weather conditions or unsafe playing conditions prevent the start the same travel expenses shall app.
- iii. Cancellations of games for any reason other than weather or field conditions require forty eight (48) hours notification of the Assignor prior to the scheduled game(s). Failure to do so will result in assessment of full game fees to the Host Association.

- iv. Once the Umpires have taken control over control of the game at ground rules, if said game is completed as a result of inclement weather or unsafe field conditions the Host Association shall be assessed the full game fees.
- v. Assigned NBUA Umpires involved in a forfeited game, will be entitled to a full game fee. If said forfeited is the result of a team not having sufficient players by game time, Umpires must allow thirty (30) minutes grace period as described in the Constitution and By-Laws of the NDBA.
- vi. In the event that the Assignor is unable to provide two (2) Umpires for a scheduled game, the Assignor shall give at least forty eight (48) hours before the time of the game to the League Convener to enable said League Convener an opportunity to fill the vacant position with a Level 2 Umpire. Provided the proper notice has been given, if the game proceeds with only one (1) assigned Umpire, said Umpire shall be entitled to 1 ½ game fee.
- vii. Tournament schedules for sanctioned OBA Tournaments must be given to the Assignor ten (10) days prior to the Tournament start date.
- viii. The NBUA shall provide the Host Association Tournament Convener with a list of assigned Umpires for each game scheduled three (3) days prior to the first game.

f) DISCIPLINE

- i. The NBUA and NDBA shall establish a joint disciplinary committee to deal with serious allegations involving conduct of NBUA Umpires.
- ii. The NBUA acknowledges that their members, as an affiliated association of the NDBA are subject to disciplinary action by the NDBA as outlines in the Constitution of the NDBA.
- iii. Any NBUA Umpire(s) missing an assigned game, the Host Affiliated Association shall not be assessed Umpires fees for the no-show Umpire. The Host Affiliate Association shall receive a credit equal to the sum of the missing Umpire(s) fees for the game missed. On a second missed assignment the Umpire(s) shall be suspended pending review by the Joint Disciplinary Committee.

g) REPORTS

- i. For games involving ejections and/or protested games, the Umpire involved shall be responsible for the submission of the completed game report online within twenty four (24) hours of the game being played.
- ii. If there is an ejection(s) or a protest during the course of a game, the involved Umpire shall be responsible to contact the League Convener. The League Convener will then inform the NDBA Supervisor of Umpires of said ejection(s) and/or protested game. The NDBA Advisory Board shall then be responsible in imposing any suspensions.

h) ASSESSMENTS

- i. The NBUA shall submit a detailed invoice listing the date, series, place and shall be paid within ten (10) days of receipt. Failure to do so could result in the bill being paid from that Team's Bond.
- ii. The NBUA can file a claim against Bond Funds if the bill issued remains unpaid, notice is given to the Association involved by the NDBA and will be paid unless a dispute is filed within five (5) days' notice. The NDBA Advisory Board shall mediate any dispute and the Boards decision is Final.
- iii. The NBUA shall assess an affiliated association within seven (7) days after the completion of a Tournament hosted by said Affiliated Association.
- iv. The Affiliated Associations shall provide the NBUA with the Affiliates Contact List by the third (3rd) Sunday of April each year.

i) FEE SCHEDULE

- i. Any fee schedule shall be approved by the NDBA before it may implemented. The NBUA shall submit any proposal for fee changes no later than September 30th in any year for consideration by the NDBA Executive for the subsequent year. Failure to provide any notification will result in the continuation of the existing fee schedule.
- ii. Junior and Senior series rates shall be based upon the rates of the Leagues where the Junior and Senior Teams play as per the Affiliated Constitutions.

OTHER DOCUMENTATION:

This material is not within the Constitution or By-Laws, but sits as an Appendices that are updates as required, by at least once per year. The entire package can be then handed to all Board Members about

2-3 weeks after the Spring General Meeting so that all people have the same information (alternative would be to post on web-site).

APPENDIX 1: NDBA and NBUA ORGANIZATION

APPENDIX 2: FEE STRUCTURES AND OTHER PERTINENT DATA

APPENDIX 3: CRITICAL DATE LISTS

APPENDIX 4: CONVENERS DUTIES

APPENDIX 5: REVISION HISTORY